
 

Defence Business Services Secretariat 
Room 6303
Tomlinson House 
Norcross
Thornton-Cleveleys
FY5 3WP
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10 February 2022 

Dear 

Thank you for your letter of 5 January 2022 to the Ministry of Defence (MOD) requesting
all documents relating to the employment, personnel, earnings and health records of your
client. As you are aware, the majority of your request is being dealt with by the Subject
Access Request (SAR) team, however, points 7, 10 and 11 have been passed to our office
to be dealt with under the Freedom of Information Act 2000 (FOIA):

“7. If our client was made redundant, details of the current selection criteria used for 
redundancies.
10. Whether our client would have been able to continue working beyond the age of 
65 and, if so, whether he would have been able to continue working in the same role 
on the same pay.
11. Comparative earnings – that is the current average net earnings for a selection of 
employees engaged currently in the same position as our client was. We appreciate 
that you will most likely wish to give figures anonymously.”

I am treating your correspondence as a request for information under the Freedom of 
Information Act 2000 (FOIA).

A search for the information has now been completed within the Ministry of Defence and I
can confirm that some of the information in scope of your request is held.

In answer to Q7, please find the attached Selection Criteria document at Annex A, which a 
business area could use during a redundancy situation. However, under Section 16 
(Advice and Assistance) I should explain that each business area is entitled to use the 
criteria best suited to their business need. Scheme rules relating to eligibility is governed 
by the Cabinet Office (Civil Service pensions). The scheme rules can be found on the Civil 
Service Pensions Scheme website at: https://www.civilservicepensionscheme.org.uk/your-
pension/work-life/redundancy/

In answer to Q10, the information you have requested falls entirely within the scope of an 
absolute exemption under Section 21 (Information reasonably accessible by other means) 
of the FOIA. Section 21(1) has been applied, as the information is already in the public 
domain and therefore, reasonably accessible to you at the link below. Section 21 is an
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absolute exemption and as such, there is no requirement to consider the public interest in 
making a decision to withhold the information.

Under Section 16 (advice and Assistance) you might wish to know that there is no 
mandatory retirement age for Principle Civil Service Pension Scheme (PCSPS) employees. 
The correct term is retirement with pension, and it is the employee’s choice to take it. 
However, the exception is if the individual is a Fire Fighter, in which case retirement age is 
65. Details of the Civil Service Pension Scheme can be found online at -
https://www.civilservicepensionscheme.org.uk/

In answer to Q11, Some of the information you have requested also falls under Section 21 
(Information reasonably accessible by other means) of the FOIA. Section 21(1) has been 
applied, as the information is already in the public domain and therefore, reasonably 
accessible to you at the link below:
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_
data/file/1006708/HOCS_Mar_21_junior_data.csv/preview

Under Section 16 (Advice and Assistance) it may be helpful to know that the current 
average earnings for individuals currently engaged at the level you have requested, is 
£56,624.50. Please note that this figure is gross, as net earnings have too many variables 
such as PAYE, National Insurance contribution, Pension deductions etc.

If you have any queries regarding the content of this letter, please contact this office in the 
first instance.

If you wish to complain about the handling of your request, or the content of this response, 
you can request an independent internal review by contacting the Information Rights 
Compliance team, Ground Floor, MOD Main Building, Whitehall, SW1A 2HB (e-mail CIO- 
FOI-IR@mod.gov.uk). Please note that any request for an internal review should be made 
within 40 working days of the date of this response.

If you remain dissatisfied following an internal review, you may raise your complaint
directly to the Information Commissioner under the provisions of Section 50 of the
Freedom of Information Act. Please note that the Information Commissioner will not 
normally investigate your case until the MOD internal review process has been completed. 
The Information Commissioner can be contacted at: Information Commissioner’s Office, 
Wycliffe House, Water Lane, Wilmslow, Cheshire, SK9 5AF. Further details of the role and 
powers of the Information Commissioner can be found on the Commissioner's website at
https://ico.org.uk/.

Yours sincerely,

Defence Business Services (Secretariat)
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